
Notice of Meeting 
Polk City | Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) 

************************** 
October 17, 2022 | 6:00 pm 

City Hall | Council Chambers 
Public Meeting participation in person or via phone 

Call in #515-726-3598 Participant Code 535355 
Public Members can provide comments directly to support@polkcityia.gov 
*any comments received before the time of the meeting will be made a part of the minutes 

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION DURING THE MEETING please contact the City Clerk 
by 5pm on the date of the meeting by email at jcoffin@polkcityia.gov with your name and address for 
the record, if you are calling in please include the phone number you will be calling in with.  You will 
be recognized for five minutes of comment.   

 
Broadcast live and playback will be available at https://www.youtube.com/c/polkcityiagovchannel  

*************************** 
Tentative Meeting Agenda 

 

Doug Sires | Chair 
Deanna Triplett | Vice Chair 

  P&Z Commission Members: Ron Hankins | Krista Bowersox | Doug Ohlfest | Justin Vogel | Amber Pringnitz 
 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Public Comments 

5. Approval of P&Z Commission Meeting minutes for September 19, 2022 

6. Recommend Council amend the Comprehensive Plan, the Rezoning Petition and PUD Master 

Plan for Leonard Senior Living 

7. Reports & Particulars 

 Council Liaison, City Manager, Staff, and Commission 

8. Adjourn until November 21, 2022 

mailto:support@polkcityia.gov
mailto:jcoffin@polkcityia.gov
https://www.youtube.com/c/polkcityiagovchannel


 
 

Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jenny Coffin - City Clerk 

MEETING MINUTES 
The City of Polk City 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
6:00 p.m., Monday, September 19, 2022 

 
Polk City, Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) held a meeting at 6:00 p.m., on September 19, 2022, in City Hall Council Chambers. 

The agenda was posted at the City Hall office as required by law.  
These tentative minutes reflect all action taken at the meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order | Sires called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
2. Roll Call | Bowersox, Triplett, Sires, Ohlfest, Pringnitz (via Zoom), Vogel| In attendance  

Hankins | Absent 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Bowersox and seconded by Triplett to approve the agenda. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
4. Public Comments | None 

 
5. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

MOTION:  A motion was made by Ohlfest and seconded by Bowersox to approve P&Z Commission Meeting 
Minutes for August 15, 2022 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
6. Rezoning Petition for Holly Woods  

MOTION: A motion was made by Ohlfest and seconded by Vogel to recommend Council approve the Rezoning 
Petition for Holly Woods. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
7. Preliminary Plat for Antler Ridge 

MOTION: A motion was made by Ohlfest and seconded by Vogel to recommend Council approve the Preliminary 
Plat for Antler Ridge subject to Staff and Engineering Comments dated 9/5/2022. 
YES: Vogel, Bowersox, Sires, Ohlfest, Pringnitz 
NO: Triplett 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

8. Reports & Particulars 
Ohlfest asked for update regarding project at Bridge and Parker. 
Sires asked for update on Hy-Vee project 
 

9. Adjournment   
MOTION: A motion was made by Triplett and seconded by Bowersox to adjourn at 6:28 p.m. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Next Meeting Date – Monday, October 17, 2022 



PETITION FOR REZONING TO P.U.D.

Date: October 13, 2022 Prepared by: Kathleen Connor
Travis D. Thornburgh, P.E.

Project: Leonard Senior Living Project No.: 122.1349.01
Rezoning & PUD Master Plan

GENERAL INFORMATION:
Property Owner: Clifford Leonard
Applicant: Maven Crux Development
Area: 6.044 Acres
Current Zoning:  R-1 Single Family Detached 

Residential District 
Requested Zoning: P.U.D 
Existing Land Use: Single Family Residential 
Future Land Use: Low Density Residential

(1-4 Dwelling Units/Acre)
Requested Future Land Use: High Density Residential 

(8-24 Dwelling Units/Acre)
BACKGROUND: 
The subject parcel is shown in purple above. This property contains one existing home, built in 
1905, on a large lot which leaves the bulk of the lot vacant. When Polk City later adopted zoning 
regulations, the parcel was zoned to R-1 residential.  The owner is now interested in selling his 
property for development purposes. 
PETITION TO REZONE TO P.U.D.
On behalf of Clifford Leonard, Maven Crux Development has submitted a Petition for Rezoning of 
the subject property from R-1 to P.U.D. The purpose of this request is for development of a senior 
living facility. While such facilities are permitted in the R-3 zoning district, the developer believes 
PUD zoning will better accommodate the variety of dwelling types and uses being proposed as part 
of this development in this location adjacent to an established residential neighborhood.  In addition, 
a PUD will allow more efficient use of the available land by reducing parking requirements to better 
reflect the actual anticipated traffic loading of the intended residents. 
The applicant has obtained consent to the proposed rezoning from the owners of 53.4% of the area 
contained within the 250’ buffer surrounding the proposed rezoning. The City Clerk will provide 
notice of the public hearing, the date of which has not yet been set by Council. 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Maven-Crux Development intends to construct an Senior Living Center, with various levels of care.  
The developer plans for the center to include three connected buildings that together will include 



Leonard Senior Living and PUD Rezoning & Master Plan
October 13, 2022
Page 2 of 5

PUD-Rezoning-04_2022-10-13_LeonardPUDRezoning.docx

approximately 33 independent living units, 51 assisted living units, and 42 memory care units along 
with common facilities that will be used by residents and their guests.  Each of these care levels will 
offer a multiple floor plans, with a variety of floorplans and unit sizes. The common facilities will be 
located in the Town Center building and will offer amenities such as the primary kitchen and dining 
facilities, multi-purpose gathering spaces, offices, mail delivery, maintenance, and other related uses. 
The Master Plan indicates the planned location for parking, including underground parking, and a 
fire apparatus road that will also serve as a recreational trail that will connect to Leonard Park and 
the Neal Smith Trail.  Landscape buffers will be planted along the north and east boundaries of the 
development and parkway trees will be planted along Parker Boulevard.  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The provision of additional housing options was identified in the Comprehensive Plan and City Staff 
as a needed area of growth in the City of Polk City.  There appears to be a need for senior living 
options within the city.
The current zoning and existing and future land use of the properties surrounding the area proposed 
to be rezoned are as follows:

Adjacency Zoning Existing Land Use Future Land Use
Southwest (SW) R-1 & U-1 Open Space Open Space
Northwest (NW) R-1A Leonard Park Parks and Recreation
North (N) R-1 SF Residential Low Density Residential
East (E) R-1 SF Residential Low Density Residential
South (S) PUD & R-2 SF Residential Low Density Residential

Zoning Map Excerpt Future Land Use Plan Excerpt



Leonard Senior Living and PUD Rezoning & Master Plan
October 13, 2022
Page 3 of 5

PUD-Rezoning-04_2022-10-13_LeonardPUDRezoning.docx

A Comprehensive Plan Amendment will be required prior to approval of the rezoning to PUD since 
the proposed use of this lot exceeds the maximum density for low density residential use of four (4) 
dwelling units per acre. The conceptual layout for the PUD Master Plan shows 20.8 dwelling units 
per acre.  As a result, the Future Land Use Plan would need to be amended to designate this parcel as 
a High Density Residential used, intended for use in districts with 8-24 dwelling units per acre, prior 
to rezoning this parcel to PUD for the senior living center. 
P.U.D. MASTER PLAN & RESTRICTIONS:
As required for all P.U.D. rezonings, the developer has provided a P.U.D. Master Plan for this 
development. The master plan shows construction a large, senior living center intended to contain 
126 dwelling units of various care levels. The facility would provide a continuum of care, including 
Independent Living, Assisted Living, and Memory Care.  The assisted and independent living units 
will be in a 3-story, 94,386 sq. ft. building on the west side of the site.  The 1-story, 30,271 sq. ft. 
memory care building will be on the east side of the site.  Between these buildings will be a 18,700 
sq. ft.1-2 story building for common uses, referred to as the Town Center. The three buildings are 
interconnected with enclosed breezeways.  The developer has provided conceptual architectural 
elevations to demonstrate the character of the building, including pitched rooflines with gables to 
soften the mass of the building and a combination of brick and stone veneers to enhance the 
horizontal lap siding. 
The master plan calls for a fire apparatus road that also serves as a recreational trail. The plan calls 
for removable bollards at each end of this trail to restrict non-emergency vehicular traffic on this 
pavement. The existing type, size, and quantity of these bollards will be determined by the City at 
the time of site plan approval. City Staff will also provide additional fire truck information at the 
time of site plan review to ensure that the fire lane is appropriately designed to accommodate 
emergency services.
There is an existing paved recreational trail along the entire street frontage of this lot. Prior to site 
plan or plat approval staff will review the need for a Petition & Waiver for reconstruction of this as a 
PCC trail, along with the need for easements where the trail encroaches on private property.
The P.U.D. Master Plan, and future Ordinance, include the following stipulations:

a. The proposed setbacks shall be a 30’ front yard along W. Washington Street and Parker 
Blvd., 40’ yard on the north and east sides of the lot, and 12.5’ side yard on the west side 
adjacent to the park.  For comparison, the R-3 district requires a of 30’ front yard, 40’ rear 
yard (east), and 12.5’ side yard (north).

b. A Type ‘B’ semi-opaque landscape buffer shall be provided within a 20’ wide easement on 
the north and east property lines to provide screening for existing R-1 zoning districts. For 
comparison, the R-3 district requires a Type “A” open screen within a 20’ easement abutting 
R-1 properties.

c. The south and west sides of the 3-story independent/assisted living building will be 30% 
brick (or acceptable alternative) and the north and east will be 15% brick. The south 
elevation of the 1-2 story Town Center will be 30% brick and the north elevation of this 
building will be 15% brick, while the less visible east and west sides would not be required to 
have any brick.  All elevations of the 1-story Memory Care building will be 15% brick.  For 



Leonard Senior Living and PUD Rezoning & Master Plan
October 13, 2022
Page 4 of 5

PUD-Rezoning-04_2022-10-13_LeonardPUDRezoning.docx

comparison purposes, Code requires all R-3 residential buildings with more than 4 dwelling 
units to be 30% brick on the facades facing public streets, but there is no requirement for 
brick on other facades.

d. The developer proposes the parking requirements for this use shall be based on:

Proposed Per Zoning Code
(2 bedrooms/unit, max)Parking

Regs Requirement Stalls Requirement Stalls
Independent 
Living 
(33 units)

1 stall/unit 33
1.25 stalls / unit +
1 garage stall / unit +
1 visitor stall / 5 units

81

Assisted Living 
(51 units) 0.5 stalls/unit 25 1stall / 2 units +

1/on-duty staff member 35

Memory Care
(42 units) 1 stall/staff @ max shift 30 3 stalls/5 beds 26

Visitor Parking
(126 total units) 1 stall/18 units

Total Stalls Per Master Plan 95 Per Code 142
Garage Indicated on Master Plan 55 Included in above total 33

e. The parkland dedication shall be fulfilled by a fee that is equivalent to the fair market value 
of the land, based on 360.851 square feet of land per dwelling unit.  The fair market value 
will be determined by the City Manager when the property is platted.

f. This property shall be platted in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations prior to Site 
Plan approval.

g. The PUD area is 6.04 acres. Per Code, Council may waive the requirement for PUD’s to be a 
minimum of 10 acres due to site constraints. From staff’s perspective, waiving the 10-acre 
minimum seems reasonable given the developed nature of the area surrounding this largely 
undeveloped lot.

REVIEW COMMENTS:   
All of staff’s review comments on the rezoning and PUD Master Plan have been addressed.
The proposed regulations and restrictions for the Leonard Senior Living PUD are included in the 
“P.U.D. Master Plan & Restrictions” section above. 



Leonard Senior Living and PUD Rezoning & Master Plan
October 13, 2022
Page 5 of 5

PUD-Rezoning-04_2022-10-13_LeonardPUDRezoning.docx

RECOMMENDATION ON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT:
At their meeting, the Planning & Zoning Commission should make a recommendation to City 
Council on the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Plan which 
would change the future land use for the subject property from low density residential to high 
density residential, based on one of the following options:

A. Approve the applicant’s request to amend the future land use of the subject area to high 
density residential use.

B. Deny the applicant’s request to amend the future land use of the subject area to high 
density residential use.

C. Approve the applicant’s request to amend the future land use of the subject area to high 
density residential use, subject to certain modifications or restrictions as specified in 
P&Z’s recommendation(s).

RECOMMENDATION ON REZONING:
Based on prior approval of the above Comprehensive Plan amendment, the Planning & Zoning 
Commission should also make a recommendation to City Council regarding the proposed rezoning 
for the subject property from R-1 to PUD, based on one of the following options:

A. Approve the applicant’s request to rezone their property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
as presented, subject to the following:

1. Approval of the associated PUD Master Plan, including the above-described 
stipulations, in conjunction with the rezoning.

2. Council waiver of 10-acre minimum requirement for PUD District.
3. Payment of all professional billings to the City of Polk City.

B. Deny the applicant’s request to rezone their property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) as 
presented.

C. Approve the applicant’s request to rezone their property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
subject to certain revisions to the Master Plan and/or the above-described stipulations or 
additional restrictions as specified in the P&Z’s recommendation, provided the applicant 
agrees to said amended recommendation(s).





























































































































LEONARD SENIOR LIVING

4121 NW URBANDALE DRIVE, URBANDALE, IOWA 50322
PH: (515) 369-4400     Fax: (515) 369-4410

CIVIL DESIGN ADVANTAGE

PROJECT TIMETABLE

SUBMITTAL DATES

ARCHITECT

PROJECT SITE ADDRESS

INDEX   OF   SHEETSVICINITY   MAP

LEONARD SENIOR LIVING

P.U.D MASTER PLAN FOR:

POLK CITY, IOWA

POLK CITY, IOWA

PROJECT

DEVELOPER

OWNER

ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR

REZONING DESCRIPTION

ZONING

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

GENERAL NOTES

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

BULK REGULATIONS



W WASHINGTON AVENUE

PARKER BOULEVARD

HI
LL

CR
ES

T 
DR

IV
E

C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:  

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

7

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

-2
1-

20
22

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
10

-1
0-

20
22

2



C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:  

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

7

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

-2
1-

20
22

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
10

-1
0-

20
22

3



C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:  

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

7

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

-2
1-

20
22

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
10

-1
0-

20
22

4



C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:  

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

7

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

-2
1-

20
22

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
10

-1
0-

20
22

5
PRECEDENT IMAGES - LAVISTA



C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:  

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

7

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

-2
1-

20
22

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
10

-1
0-

20
22

6
PRECEDENT IMAGES - LAVISTA



C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:  

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

7

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

-2
1-

20
22

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
10

-1
0-

20
22

7
PRECEDENT IMAGES - ELKHORN



C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

2205.396

LE
O

N
A

R
D

 S
EN

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

EN
G

IN
EE

R
:

TE
C

H
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

PO
LK

 C
IT

Y,
 IO

W
A

1
1

PR
EP

AR
ED

10
/0

7/
22

TU
R

N
IN

G
 M

O
VE

M
EN

T 
EX

H
IB

IT
PH

O
N

E:
 (5

15
) 3

69
-4

40
0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22


	PZ Agenda -10.17.22
	September 19 2022 minutes PZ
	PUD-Rezoning-04_2022-10-13_LeonardPUDRezoning
	PETITION FOR REZONING TO P.U.D.

	Leonard Senior Living
	PUD MASTER PLAN 2022-10-12
	Sheets and Views
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - COVER
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - MASTER PLAN
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - ELEVATIONS
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - SPACE PROGRAM
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - PRECEDENT IMAGES
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - PRECEDENT IMAGES (2)
	2205396-PUD Master Plan - PRECEDENT IMAGES (3)


	Autoturn Exhibit-2022-10-07

